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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Winder Building, located on the N. W. corner of 17th and F Streets,
N. W., is an austere buff-painted,.L-shaped brick building of five stories
and a basement, It is 53 feet deep, and fronts 101 feet (9ibays) on 17th
Street and 209 feet (13 bays) on F Street., When built. in 1847-18u8, this
130-room office building was an architectural and englneering pioneer for
its height, its use of iron beams and its central hot-water heating system.
The Winder Building was one of the first to rely exclusively on central
heat, and the absence of fireplaces precipitated a controversy which re-
sulted in Government buildings being built with fireplaces and chimneys, in
spite of central heating, for decades thereafter. Although the building
was notable for being one of the very first in Washington with iron beams,
it is essentially a masonry building,.

The Winder Building has undergone a number of alterations during its
120-year history, The.original foundation walls were sheathed in marble
after the 1872 grading-down of 17th and F Streets uncovered them to within
20 inches of the footing. This permitted the basement rooms to be exca-
vated, but impaired the strength of the foundations. The exterior brick
walls above the basement were originally covered with mastic cement or
stucco which was partially removed at some later date and the brick painted,
This accounts for its present rough appearance. The first floor is marked
by six vertical rows of recessed band courses running between the windows
on the two facades, and giving the appearance of rustication, Originally,
both facades on the second floor had an ironwork balcony, which is said to
have been a reviewing stand for Civil War military parades. This balcony
was removed around 1930, and in 1932 the original 12-foot double-hung
windows which had given egress to the balcony were replaced by the present
9-foot 2/2 light double~hung windows., At the same time, all the windows in
the building were replaced by modern ones and the original stone sills and
lintels removed. A slightly projecting brick belt course separates the
fourth and fifth stories. The fifth floor garret windows were replaced
with larger ones when-that floor was converted to an additional office floor
in 1928. The simple, classic projecting cornice has large dentils beneath
it,

The main entrance to the building was in the middle of the 17th Street
facade with two smaller entrances near either end of the F Street side.
Each of these entrances was reached by a low flight of steps. In the 1947~
1948 renovation, the F Street door nearest 17th Street was replaced by a
large window to increase the interior light. At the same time, the princi-
pal entrance on 17th Street was raised and a classical pediment and grace-
ful double~curved stairway were added. Modern shutters have also been
added on the windows of the two lower floors,

In the interior the enormous original iron stairway, which was once
the pride of the building, was long ago removed as a fire hazard. A new
fireproof stairway was added in an area way outside the original walls.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE (Include Personages, Dates, Events, Etc.)
The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated the Winder Building a

Category II Landmark which contributes significantly to the cultural heri-
tage and visual beauty of the District of Columbia. One of the few extant
pre-Civil War office buildings in Washington, the Winder Building was no-
table at the time of its construction for its height (much criticized) in
pre-elevator days, its early use of iron beams, and its central heating
system, Lincoln, Meigs, Jefferson Davis, and the Government's early engi-
neers, scientists, and surveyors, as well as historic events, are associ-
ated with this 120-year old building. It should be preserved.

Designed exclusively for governmental use, the Winder Building was
erected in 1847-48 as a commercial venture by.W. H, Winder, a nephew of
General W, H, Winder, who commanded the American Forces at the Battle of
Bladensburg in the War of 1812 and who is often mistakenly credited as the
builder, The Government rented the building in 1848 for several bureaus of
the Interior, Treasury, War and Navy Departments, overflowing Government-
owned buildings, and then bought it in 1854 for $200,000 after long dispute

Early in the Civil War, Quartermaster General Montgomery Meigs and the
Chief of Ordnance were housed in the building. The Judge Advocate General,
the Office of the Commissioner for the Exchange for Prisoners, and the Bu-
reau of Military Justice moved in later, and the. search for the conspira-
tors in Lincoln's assassination and their prosecution were directed from
there,

Much pseudo-Civil War history has been credited to the Winder Building.
It has long been believed that the Union military telegraph had its head-
quarters in the building, that it housed the offices of four successive
Commanding Generals of the Union Army (Scott, Halleck, McClellan, Grant)
and that it was a military prison complete with dungeons in the basement.
Recent research has revealed that the telegraph office was in the 0ld War
Building; that the Commanding Generals were headquartered in the Grant
Building across the streets (S. W, corner of 17th & F Streets, now site of
FDIC), and that, although civilian suspects were lnterrogated in the build-
ing, it is unlikely they were imprisoned there. An historic plaque which
perpetuates these inaccuracies was placed on the 17th Street facade of the
building in 1950 by the National Capital Sesquicentennial Commission. It
should be removed.

After the Civil War the building was used exclusively by the War Depart-
ment and housed in part a museum for the display of an ordnance collection
later dispersed when the War Department moved into the State, War and Navy
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8. Significance-~Winder Building

Building in 1888, The Winder Building then served the Treasury Department
and still later a variety of agencies related to the State Department and to
the Executive Office of the President. Since 1960 it has housed the Office
of Civil Defense Mobilization, now called the Office of Emergency Planning.




